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Board of Water Commissioners & Finance Committee
Meeting Agenda
Monday, December 229, 2025 @ 7:00 PM

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, meetings are being held virtually via Zoom

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/86086830401

Phone one-tap:
+13052241968,,86086830401# US, +13092053325,,86086830401# US
Join via audio:
+1 305 224 1968 US, +1 309 205 3325 US, +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago), +1 646 931 3860 US
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York), +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC}, +1 253 205 0468 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma), +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston), +1 360 209 5623 US
Webinar ID: 860 8683 0401

International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kccZsB76¢cc

e Comments from the public
» Approve minutes from the meeting of 11/24 and 12/8
o Appoint one Commissioner to sign warrants while conducting meetings virtually

NEW BUSINESS:

e Representatives of CBIZ CPAs for annual audit report
e Update on Investments from Cap Trust (formerly Boston Financial)

OLD BUSINESS:

e Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS)
e Current sample data, if available
e Discussion of Additional PFAS Upgrades
e MDL Update
e Review Draft Budget for FY “27 and proposed articles for 2026 Annual District Meeting Warrant
e MWRA MetroWest Expansion
e Recruitment for Treasurer/Collector

EXECUTIVE SESSION: To conduct strategy sessions for contract negotiations with nonunion personnel.

Any agenda item(s) which did not come to the attention of the Board of Water Commissioners 48 hours prior to this meeting and were
not reasonably anticipated.

Agenda posted on 12/18/2025 7:49 AM
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Water Supply District of Acton

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the fiduciary activities of the Water
Supply District of Acton (the “District™), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities, and the fiduciary activities of the District, as of June
30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States (“Government Auditing Standards”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The combining schedules and additional information, as listed
in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the combining
statements and additional information, as listed in the table of contents are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The financial statements of the Water Supply District of
Acton, as of June 30, 2024, and for the year then ended, were audited by other auditors whose report dated
September 26, 2024, expressed unmodified opinions on those statements. The 2024 and 2023 supplementary
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information on page 66 was subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 2024 and 2023 basic
financial statements by other auditors whose reports stated that they were fairly stated in all material respects to
the 2024 and 2023 basic financial statements as a whole, respectively.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated , 2025
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Merrimack, NH
, 2025



Water Supply District of Acton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2025

As management of the Water Supply District of Acton (the “District”), we offer readers of these
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended
June 30, 2025. The District complies with financial reporting requirements issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™). Management’s discussion and analysis are part of these
requirements.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements include the single purpose business-type activity
statements, the fiduciary fund statements and the notes to the financial statements. The proprietary fund
and entity-wide financial statements use the same basis of accounting and are therefore reported as the
proprietary fund statement of net position and statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position.

The District’s business-type activities account for all operating, capital and debt service activities.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not available to support the District’s own programs.

The other postemployment benefit (OPEB) trust fund is used to accumulate resources to provide funding
for future OPEB (other postemployment benefit) liabilities.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the fund financial statements.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information, combining schedules, and additional
information. A schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and a schedule
of contributions have been provided to show a multi-year trend information on the District’s net pension
liability in relation to the Middlesex County Retirement System. A schedule of changes in the District’s
net other postemployment benefit liability/(asset) and related ratios had been provided to show the
components of changes in the District’s net other postemployment liability/(asset). Also, combining
schedules have been provided to show the impact of the combining of the District’s operating funds with
the long-term liabilities and assets to total the full-accrual financial statements. Also, a budgetary
comparison schedule has been provided for the general sub-fund to demonstrate compliance with the
District’s annual appropriated budget; a schedule of reserve for capital projects has been provided to
show the activity of the individual projects included in the basic financial statements; and a general
operations — schedule of changes in net position — current year and prior two periods has been provided
to show a three year trend schedule for the District’s general fund activity.



Water Supply District of Acton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Financial Highlights

In 2025, the District entered into interim loan agreements with the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust
(“MCWT”) in the amounts of $7.6 million and $10.4 million for the purposes of financing costs of the
South Acton Water Treatment Plant (“SAWTP?”) and the Central Acton Water Treatment Plant
(“CAWTP”) drinking water projects, respectively. During the interim financing period, the District is
allowed to draw funds from the Trust on an interest-free basis. Upon completion of the project, and
notice from MCWT, the interim financing will be converted to long-term debt, by the Trust. At this
point, a permanent debt funding schedule will be established. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred
approximately $4.2 million and $6.6 million of eligible construction costs related to the SAWTP and
CAWTP projects, respectively. In 2025, the District drew down on project costs, and was awarded $2.4
million in principal loan forgiveness.

In 2025, the District was awarded a net settlement of $4.2 million from 3M related to a class action
lawsuit, payable over eight years. For 2025, the District reported, as a special item, the cash payment
received of $611,000 and a receivable of $1.4 million for payments received after year-end.
Additionally, the District was awarded a settlement from DuPont in the same lawsuit, and recorded a
receivable of $350,000 for the amount received subsequent to year end.

As measured in the updated other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability actuarial report, the District
has elected to pay retiree health insurance from operations rather than directly from the OPEB Trust
fund, which increases the funding to the Trust. This update resulted in an increase to the District’s
discount rate from 5.98% to 7.00%, which decreased the District’s net OPEB liability.

Financial Analysis

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. Assets and
deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $43.5 million at
the close of year 2025. This represents an increase of $8.3 million from the prior year.



Water Supply District of Acton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2025

The following table demonstrates the changes in the District’s net position at June 30, 2025 and 2024:

2025 2024
Assets:
CULTENE ASSETS. . vrrerreereeianneeareeaneernesanssaeseneans $ 10,671,783 $ 8,323,651
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital).................. 5,171,138 5,344,857
Nondepreciable capital assets........cccvvvvviiiinenninnenne. 21,487,929 11,377,661
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation...... 51,159,299 50,933,381
Total ASSetS..ccveieereeerereecereeccenreransssonsonns 88,490,149 75,979,550
Deferred outflows of resources..........ccevvvievncennes 831,561 1,135,203
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt).................... 4,124,453 396,189
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)................ 4,813,496 5,133,638
Current debt. . ..o viiiirri i 8,053,117 9,075,654
Noncurrent debt.........oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 22.944.171 21.454.072
Total liabilities....c.ccoveeernieernnrenirenencaeaannns 39,935,237 36,059,553
Deferred inflows of resources.......c.coivceereennnseness 5,864,510 5,875,868
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets........................ 41,649,940 31,781,316
Restricted..oovneriiiiii e - 26,796
UNresStricted. ..o v e eeieeee i eiaanaas 1.872.023 3.371.220
Total net position.......cc.ecevvrereiiininieniennnes $ 43,521,963 $ 35,179,332

The largest portion of net position, $41.6 million, reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land improvements, vehicles, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any related
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide
services to its users; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
investment in its capital assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net position has a year-end balance of $1.9 million.



Water Supply District of Acton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2025

The following table demonstrates the changes in revenues and expenses between 2025 and 2024:

2025 2024
Operating revenues:
Water user charges & other services..........cccceevvvernnnnnn. $ 7,939,259 §% 6,372,723
Mitigation fees.......vvviiiiiiiiiiei i 235,060 17,402
Solar field land use and cell tower use............ovevnennne. 516,263 545,337
New service meter install fees............................. 12,164 15,392
Other Operating reVemUES. ... .cvuvereeereeenrnrnrneeeeeeeseanss 8.540 -
Total operating revenues....c.ccocvereenvrrernvaracersennee 8,711,286 6,950,854
Operating expenses:
Salaries & Wages.....ooieiiiieiii e 1,645,971 1,388,640
Other postemployment benefits expense.....c....oeeeeeeenennnn (64.758) (A) 138,859
Depreciation..........c.vuvivevererere e ieecene e 1,932,662 1,554,031
Lights, power, & fuel.......oooiiviiiiiiiiiiiiieniccenenennns 600,000 581,747
Health & life insurance............cocovveeenrnveraeneneninennn. 317,988 205,109
Maintenance & operations... S 535,303 389,733
69,391 83,106
454,699 512,065
110,593 98,781
53,560 35,039
122,802 128,371
58,185 81,393
77,887 80,371
8,028 10,899
Information reports. .......cocooeiiiiiiii e 11,120 38,163
Office SUPPHES. . .vviviririiiieiei e e e, 41,622 63,361
D.E.P. withdrawal & fees............cocveeimimiciarininennanns 4,791 4,967
ACCOUMNZ. 1. vieiininiiietiee et eeieaaeneierienaaeins 16.000 15,800
Total operating eXpenses......c.oceevuireireniarennnenanen. 6,062,911 5,410,435
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment iNCOME........oeiviiiiiieiir et eieeeieeeenanns 222,232 205,358
INtETESt EXPEISE. . 1ururnrrnierenerareieeenrrnireerasnnreanenensn (813.996) (626,082)
Total nonoperating revenues (eXpenses).......ccecevsen. (591,764) (420,724)
Special Item....ccueiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2,362,009 -
Capital Contribution........ccoceviiiiiisioicinnininsinienionn 3,924,011 2,063,272
Change in net position.......cccevireiereeriiarescracasicnrosicnesssn 8,342,631 3,182,967
Net position, beginning of year.........cccoiviiiiniiiriiiinicnniens 35,179,332 31,996,365
Net position, end of Year......cocovvvrvaeicriaciieseironsinresences $ 43,521,963 $ 35,179,332

(A) Represents a decrease in the estimated net other postemployment benefit liability,
net of related deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources.



Water Supply District of Acton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2025

The District’s net position increased by $8.3 million over the prior year. This increase was primarily due
to operating income totaling $2.6 million, as well as capital contributions for grant revenue totaling $1.5
million and $2.4 million in principal loan forgiveness, as well as $2.4 million in settlement revenues
recognized as a special item. Operating revenues increased $1.8 million, mainly related to water user
charges & other services, which was due to an increase in the rates charged.

Budgetary Highlights

The District’s annual budget is a legally adopted budget that is approved at the District’s Annual
Meeting. In 2025, District Annual Meeting authorized appropriations of $6.8 million. Actual revenues
came in over budget by $896,000, primarily due to water user charges and services. Actual expenditures
came in under budget and unexpended appropriations totaled approximately $228,000. The District’s
voted budget does not include the mitigation activities, which are included within the District’s general
sub-fund.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

In 2023, the District reported $12.3 million in capital asset additions, mainly related to costs associated
with PFAS mitigation efforts at two of the District’s water treatment plants. These were capitalized as
construction in progress. Other capital asset additions include costs related to land, infrastructure,
machinery and equipment, and vehicles. Construction on the North Acton Water Treatment Plant was
placed into service from construction in progress in 2025.

The District entered into interim loan agreements with the MCWT to fund project costs related to PFAS
mitigation efforts at the Districts’ water treatment plants. The project costs associated with the North
Acton Water Treatment Plant were funded through 2025, and during 2025, interim loan draws, net of
previously recognized principal loan forgiveness, was permanently financed. Remaining interim loan
balances from the MCWT relate to the SAWTP, and the CAWTP, which had outstanding interim loan
balances totaling approximately $6.0 million at year end, which is net of principal loan forgiveness of
$2.4 million recognized in 2025.

The District used a combination of other grant revenue and available funds as well as proceeds from
bonds issued in the current year to pay down the interim loan outstanding during the year totaling $5.9
million. The bonds proceeds issued in the current year totaled $2.7 million, and the District recognized
an associated premium totaling $190,000.

The District has several lease agreements related to land usage for the operation of solar energy
generating and storage fields as well as for cellular towers. The District is scheduled to receive lease
payments through 2044, and reported a lease receivable and corresponding deferred inflows of resources
related to leases totaling $5.5 million.



Water Supply District of Acton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2025

District has a lease agreement for the use of filtration equipment in one of the District’s treatment plants
for per- and poly fluoroalkyl contamination mitigation efforts. The cost of the assets acquired through
the lease totaled $2.4 million, and the accumulated depreciation on those assets totaled $450,000. At
June 30, 2025, the lease liability totaled $2.0 million.

Please refer to Notes 4, 6, 7, and 8 of the basic financial statements for further discussion of the capital
assets and debt activity.

Economic Outlook and Next Year

Looking ahead to fiscal year 2026, the District is positioned to continue making significant investments
in water infrastructure with draws remaining on the interim loans outstanding from the Massachusetts
Clean Water Trust.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those
with an interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the District at 693
Massachusetts Ave, Acton, MA 01720.



Basic Financial Statements
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Water Supply District of Acton

Business-Type Activities (Enterprise Fund)
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2025

ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cashand cashequivalents... ..........c.ccoveriieviinn e e vieee e 3 5,660,920
INVESITIETIS ... .. cee it et cee et et e ree e e e e ceeeeee e e 701,904
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Billed user charges... ... .. 272,798
Unbilled user charges 1,962,585
Leases.......c.ooeveeveeenens . 322,821
PFAS Setttement receivable.............cooooiiiiiiiii 1,750,755

Total CUITEIIE ASSEIS. .. ... .o eee et ieeees vae e aeereees aeeeneaee aee e 10,671,783

NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Leases.......ccovvvveiiiiiiinin i
Capital assets, non depreciable..............
Capital assets, net of accurulated depreciation.......

5,171,138
21,487,929
51,159,299

Total NONCUITENE ASSELS ... ..t e eee vee et v e e eas b eeneenees 77.818,366
TOTAL ASSETS...... it tee it ees ot et eee it e st eeeees e eee e e mee e e e 88,490,149

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions......................oooo 339,084
Deferred outflows related to OPEB.......................oo 492477

TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.................ooees 831.561

CURRENT:
Warrants payable. .. .......co.ue it e 3,837,490
Accrued interest. .. .. .. 255,963
Lease obligations......... 268,755
Compensated absences.. 31,000
Notes payable.......... 6,012,328
Bonds payable........o.oo 1,772,034

Total current liabilities... ... .......c..cooiiiiiiiiiii e 12,177.570

NONCURRENT:
Lease obligations. .. ..........coiie i 1,744,661
Compensated absences 368,000
Net pension liability... 4,367,590
Net OPEB liability.. 717,906
Bonds payable.......... ... 21,199.510

Total noncurrent liabilities...............ccooo i 27,757 667
TOTAL LIABILITIES . .. ...t et e e cee et e eeeeee e ee e 39.935 237

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related t0 1€aS€S........ooeevviiiiiviieiie i 5,493,959
Deferred inflows related to pensions... ... 76,456
Deferred inflows related to OPEB.......... oot i e 294.095

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.........................ee. 5.864.510

NET POSITION
Net investiment in capital assets....

.. 41,649,940
Urestricted. .. ...ooo e e e e

1.872.023

TOTALNET POSITION. ... ..cooi it § 43.521.963

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Water Supply District of Acton

Business-Type Activities (Enterprise Fund)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2025
OPERATING REVENUES:
Waterlserclmges&olherservices......,,.i............... $ 7,939,259
Mitigation fees... 235,060
Solar field land use a.nd cell tower USE.....ooveeeeieenen 516,263
New service meter install fees . 12,164
Other Operating TeVEIUES.... ... ......ccooeevii v e, 8,540
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ...................... 8.711,286
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries & wages... 1,645,971
Other postemploymeni beneﬁts expense. . (64,758) (A)
Depreciation. .. . 1,932,662
Lights, power, &fuel 600,000
Health & life insurance.. . 317,988
Maimenance&operations...................................., 535,303
RESEIVE. .. ..o ierecetere et et et st ecsessasesesssasestine 69,391
Middlesex retirement 454,699
Insurarce. . e 110,593
Auto nmntenance & fuel . 53,560
Chemicals 122,802
Legal... 58,185
Laboratory ana]y51s 77,887
Education... e 8,028
Computer nmmemnce ... 46,067
Inforrmnonreports 11,120
Office SUPPlIES. .. ... ...oveere i e 41,622
Telephone... . 21,000
D.EP. w1thdrawal&fees 4,791
Accoummg 16,000
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...............ccc...e. 6.062.911
OPERATINGINCOME...........coooviiiiiviiiiaiee e 2,648 375
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVESHNENE INCOMC. ... e cee e iee e e et e e eeen 222,232
TIETESt EXPEIISE. .. oo oo oo ceeeeecee i cee cerii e een e (813.996)
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET..........ccoovvneniii (591,764)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
SPECIAL ITEM AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.. 2.056.611
SPECIAL ITEM:
PFAS Settlement revenues.............o.cevevnsverivninennns 2,362,009
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION:
Grant revenue - principal forgiveness........................ 2,418,827
GraNt EEVENUL ... ... .uuiit v eeecve s eeecen e ceecie s 1,505,184
TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS................... 3,924.011
CHANGE IN NET POSITION... ... .c..coovveiiee e 8,342,631
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.............. 35,179,332
NET POSITION ATEND OF YEAR..........c.ccccevn. $ 43,521,963

(A) Represents a decrease in the estimated net other postemployment
benefit Hability, net of related deferred outflows/(inflows)
of resources.

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Water Supply District of Acton

Business-Type Activities (Enterprise Fund)
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and WSETS... ... ... .. ooevve vt ies it eaeee et ee et e e e eee e e B 8,472,731
Payments t0 vendors... ...ttt et e e e (2,478,427)
Payments t0 €MPIOYEES. .. ......vovuut it i s i iis e s e s e e e e (1.443971)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES... ..., 4,550,333

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes. 11,343,118
Premium from the issuance of bonds............. 190,000
Acquisition and construction of capital aSSetS... .......c.ceeuvv it viiiiiiie et e s (8,622,567)
Principal payments onbonds and NOES... ... ... ... ooe vttt ier i i e (8,391,601)
Interest expense... e (733,663)
Grant receipts... ... 1,505,184
Payments on leasc ﬁnancmg (255,128)
Proceeds from settlement agreement. .. ... ... ....ee et vie e et e e 611,254

NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES... .............. (4,353,403)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase 0f INVESIMENES .. ... ..ottt i s e ae ee cee v e iee ee e (88,678)
TIVESIMENL ITICOME. .. ... ettt e et et cee eee ceetee e e cee e eaeeee e 222232

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES... ... i 133,554
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS... ...t e 330,484
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.............c.coeiine i 5.330.436

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR..........coccoiiii v 5,660,920

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
EROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income ... 2 e e e e B 2,648,375
Adjustments to reconclle operatmg income to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation. .. . 1,932,662
Deferred mﬂows related to leases .. (234,059)
Deferred (outflows)/inflows relatedtopensnons 247,178
Deferred (outﬂows)/lnﬂowsrelatedtoOPEB.“........4......4.‘..........................‘ 279,165
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Billed user charges receviable.............c..oo i (132,305)
Unbilled user charges receviable.. . (106,250)
Lease receivable... ... oo oottt e e e e e e 234,059
Warrants Payable... ... .....o oo oo e et e e e e e (29,350)
Compensated absences. . .. 202,000
Net pension liability..............ooo (147,219)
Net OPEB liability/asset... ..ot e e (343,923

Total adjUSINENLS. .. ... ..ot e e e e e 1,901,958

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES...... ..o v $ 4.550,333

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
State grant revenue - principal fOorgiveness. .. .......coovi v veeein e e B 2,418,827
Penmnemﬁm.ncingofMCWl"bondandnotes.............................H.,.........A.‘..... 630,888
Renewals of short term financing. .. . 931,951
Acquistion and construction of capltal assets on accoum . (3,646,281)
Settlement receipts... e eee i era e e ree teneeefan e eeseet aae aee areeearrteeees aan aeereseees 1,750,755

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Water Supply District of Acton

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2025
Other
Postemployment
Benefit
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..........c.cocooveiviininiiinannn. $ 63,166
Investments:
Corporate bonds...........cocvviiiiiiiniiininiii.. 539,549
Real €State. .. ....eeeiieeieceeee e cveeerccernneseee s reseateess s oo 16,577
Equity SECUrities.......ccvvviviviiiniiiiiiininiiiienenenes 792,804
Equity mutual funds......c..cccevminnnsinnininnennnes 9,634
U.S. Treasury notes.......covveeruinnirnesnenninnineennenns 25,220
Exchange traded funds.................. .. A L 134,345
TOTAL ASSETS.ccovuvesvnoncene... S0 . ...... 0. 1,581,295
NET POSITION
Restricted for other postemployment benefits.............. $ 1,581,295

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Water Supply District of Acton

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2025
Other
Postemployment
Benefit
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer contributions for other postemployment benefit payments.... $ 109,440
Net investment income:
JENZET 111750 1) 110 11 =T U OO 211,472
Less: InVeStMENt €XPENSE. ... .v.iveniteteeieieanriieieneeteineaiiees (8.198)
Net investment iNCOME. .. ...v.viuive ittt e iiiaeeene s 203,274
TOTAL ADDITIONS. . ...ttt et cenae e 312,714
DE TIONS:
Other postemployment benefit payments..................covin e« 109.440
NET INCREASE INNET POSITION. ........cooviiiiiiiiiiieieannn, 203,274
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.........cocovviiiieiieannn, 1,378,021
NET POSITION ATEND OF YEAR......ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 1,581,295

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Water Supply District of Acton (“District”) have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the recognized
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
significant District accounting policies are described herein.

A. Reporting Entity

The District is a municipality incorporated in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts with the purpose of
providing water and related services to the residents and business in the Town of Acton, Massachusetts.
The District is a separate municipality, distinct from the Town of Acton. The basic operations of the
District are financed by water user charges and other service charges. Inhabitants of the Town of Acton
who are qualified to vote in elections and Town affairs are eligible to vote on matters concerning the
District and to act on articles of the District.

For financial reporting purposes, the District has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions. The District has also considered all potential Component Units for which
it is financially accountable as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the District are such that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. There are no Component Units to report within the District.

B. Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The District engages only in business-type and fiduciary activities. Accordingly, the proprietary fund
and entity-wide financial statements use the same basis of accounting and are therefore reported as the
proprietary fund statement of net position and statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position.

There are no differences to be reported between the proprietary fund financial statements and the
government wide financial statements.

Separate financial statements are provided for both proprietary and fiduciary funds.

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government wide financial statements (i.e. proprietary fund statement of net position and statement
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position) report all non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government. There are no differences to be reported between the proprietary fund financial statements
and the government wide financial statements.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the proprietary funds principle ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a

trustee capacity for others that cannot be used to support the business-type programs.

The other postemployment benefits (OPEB) trust fund is used to accumulate resources to provide
funding for future OPEB (other postemployment benefits) liabilities.

D. Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value. The fair values were determined by the closing price for those
securities traded on national stock exchanges and at the average bid-and-asked quotation for those

securities traded in the over-the-counter market.

E. Fair Value Measurements

The District reports required types of financial instruments in accordance with the fair value standards.
These standards require an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs (such as quoted prices in
active markets) and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (such as appraisals or valuation techniques)
to determine fair value. Fair value standards also require the government to classify these financial
instruments into a three-level hierarchy, based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique or in
accordance with net asset value practical expedient rules, which allow for either Level 2 or Level 3
depending on lock up and notice periods associated with the underlying funds.

Instruments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following
categories:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical instruments as of the reporting date.
Instruments, which are generally included in this category, include actively traded equity and debt
securities, certain U.S. government obligations, and mutual funds with quoted market prices in active

markets.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Level 2 — Pricing inputs are other than quoted in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other
valuation methodologies. Certain fixed income securities, primarily corporate bonds, and certain U.S.
government obligations are classified as Level 2 because fair values are estimated using pricing models,
matrix pricing, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and include situations where there is little,
if any, market activity for the instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require
significant management judgment or estimation.

In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy and is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics
specific to the instrument. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices generally will have a
higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair
value. It is reasonably possible that change in values of these instruments will occur in the near term and
that such changes could materially affect amounts reported in these financial statements. For more
information on the fair value of the District’s financial instruments, see Note 2 — Cash and Investments.

F. Accounts Receivable

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the proprietary funds financial
statements and the fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
accounting.

User Charges

Water usage is charged to all commercial and residential users based on consumption. All users are
billed quarterly in January, April, July, and October, and are billed based on actual meter readings of
water usage on an inclining block rate schedule, which is set by the Commissioners.

Other Services

Other services consist of new installations, repairs and upgrades to services, cross connections, sprinkler
services, and rentals.

Mitigation Fees

Mitigation fees are charged for new connections or additional connections to the system. An individual
who applies for water use that requires an extension or addition to the system must provide a Water
Impact Report. The fee is calculated from the average estimated demand and is charged per gallon of
projected use.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Lease Receivable

Leases are reported at the present value of noncancelable lease payments and is offset by a
corresponding deferred inflow of resources. Lease revenue is recognized when earned. The implicit rate
used to discount the future lease receipts to their present value is 2.5%. This implicit rate was
determined based on municipal bond rates as of the lease commencement date, as they reflect the
District’s return expectations for similar credit risks and maturities.

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually.
For non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when

the qualifying expenditures are incurred, and all other grant requirements are met.

The accounts are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for
uncollectibles.

G. Inventories

Inventories are supplies and are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are
not material in total to the fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, vehicles, buildings, machinery and
equipment, and infrastructure, are reported in the proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets
are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. All
purchases and construction costs are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction, respectively,
with expected useful lives of greater than one year. The District does not have a minimum capital
threshold. Capital assets (except for land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line
basis. The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated

Useful Life
Capital Asset Type (in years)
Vehicles......ooooiiiiiiiii 6
Buildings......ooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiice 40
Right-to-use lease - equipment...................... 8
Machinery and equipment..................o.eeennen. 5-50
Infrastructure. .....coeeviniiiiiiiiiiiieen e 10-100
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are
capitalized.

L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has reported deferred outflows of
resources related to OPEB, and pensions in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has reported deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB, pensions and leases in this category.

L. Net Position
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Net Position)

Net position reported as “net investment in capital assets” includes capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent
proceeds of capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets.

Net position is reported as restricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific future use. Net position has been restricted for “Article 97
Stabilization,” which represents amounts restricted by special legislation for specified uses.

Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. It is the District’s policy to consider restricted — net
position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

M. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Middlesex County Retirement System (System) and additions to/deductions from the System’s fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the System. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2025

N. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the proprietary fund statement of net position. Material bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

0. Right-to-Use Lease Liability

Right to use lease liabilities are reported at the present value of their future minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are reported as reductions of the lease liability and as interest expense during the lease
term. The implicit rate used to discount the future lease payments to their present value is 2.8%. This
implicit rate was determined based on municipal bond rates as of the lease commencement date, as they
reflect the District’s borrowing costs for similar debt instruments.

P. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on state laws and executive
policies.

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave benefits are reported as liabilities and expensed when the
benefits are earned by employees.

Q. Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of
the revenues and expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that
were used.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities,
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State
Treasurer's Investment Pool (the “Pool”). The Treasurer may also invest trust funds in securities, other
than mortgages or collateral loans, which are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under
the laws of the Commonwealth. In addition, there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length
of deposits and investments.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the
Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (“MMDT”), which was established by the Treasurer of the
Commonwealth who serves as Trustee. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same as the value
of the Pool shares.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not
be returned to it. At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $2,360,641 and the bank balance
totaled $2,376,209. Of the bank balance, $587,430 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance,
$1,716,771 was covered by an IntraFI cash service agreement, and $72,008 was exposed to custodial
credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The District does not have a formal investment policy related to interest rate risk.

The District participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash portfolio fund with combined average
maturities of 47 days.

As of June 30, 2025, the District’s had the following investments and maturities:

Maturities

Investment Type Fair value Under 1 Year 1-5 Years 6-10 Years
Debt securities:

U.S. (Teasury NOES. ........cceevniiiinennennns $ 50,184 § 24,964 $ 25,220 § -

Corporate bonds..........coveveveiiirennnennne 845,035 44914 646,922 153,199

Total debt securities................oceveennene 895,219 § 69,878 § 672,142 § 153,199
Other investments;

Equity securities.........c.coocveeeenennenn.n. 1,116,568

Equity mutual funds............................ 13,337

Real estate investment trust................... 26,523

Exchange Traded Funds....................... 168,386

MMDT - Cash portfolio....................... 3,363,445

Total investments.....................ovvvenn. $ 5583478
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the District will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an
outside party. The District’s shares in MMDT are not subject to custodial credit risk because the
investments are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does
not have a formal investment policy related to custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation.

The District’s investments in U.S. Treasury notes totaled $50,184 are rated AAA, and the District’s
$845,035 investments in Corporate Bonds were rated as follows:

Quality Rating Corporate Bonds
AA+ ... $ 44,934
AA- 25,761
At...... #8998 ) 50,492
Al 148,729
A-. 8, ST 225,039
BBB+.......ccenninl. 188,550
BBB.........oieennnns 73,622
BBB-........coe....... 42,789
Not Rated.............. 45,119
Total.......covveennnnns $ 845.035

Concentration of Credit Risk

A concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The District does not have a formal policy related to the concentration of
credit risk. The District did not have an investments that exceeded 5% of the total investments.

Fair Value of Investments

The District holds investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Because investing is
not a core part of the District’s mission, the District determines that the disclosures related to these
investments only need to be disaggregated by major type. The District chooses a tabular format for
disclosing the levels within the fair value hierarchy.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

MMDT, which is an external investment pool that is overseen by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, meets the criteria established by GASB 79, “Certain External Investment Pools and Pool
Participants”, to report its investments at amortized cost; therefore the District reports its investments in
MMDT at amortized cost which approximates the net asset value of $1.00 per share. MMDT has a
maturity of less than 1 year and is not rated.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable
June 30, Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type 2025 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments measured at fair value:
Debt securities:
ULS. treasury NOLES. .. eeveeveeeeeeeeiaeiaeeaeeeecaeanaa $ 50,184 §$ -3 50,184 § -
Corporate bonds............oiiiiinieiinen. 845,035 - 845,035 -
Total debt securities...........cccevviveeereeienraniinn 895.219 - 895.219 -
Other investments:
Equity securities.........cc.ceevrevvrmrenniniiinieninn 1.116,568 1,116,568 - -
Equity mutual funds..........ccooooeeiiniiiiiinin 13,337 13,337 - -
Real estate investment trust...........coveeerirrnninns 26,523 26,523 - -
Exchange traded products...............c.occeeennnnee 168,386 168,386 - -
Total other investmens..........covevievvereernereennn. 1.324.814 1.324.814 - -
Total investments measured at fair value................ 2,220,033 § 1324814 § 895219 § -

Investments measured at amortized cost:

MMDT - Cash portfolio.........ccoeeiveiii i 3,363,445
Total investments................c.ccceeveeeeeeeenee.... § 5583478

Equity securities, equity mutual funds, real estate investment trusts, and exchange traded products are
classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using process quoted in active markets for
those securities. Corporate bonds and U.S. treasury notes classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
are valued using matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the
securities’ relationship benchmark quoted price.
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Water Supply District of Acton

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 20235, the following receivables are all considered to be collectible:

Receivables:

Billed user charges..........cccovveviennnnee.
Unbilled user charges............coovvveennes
PFAS settlement................ccoovveennnis

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Allowance
Gross for Net

Amount Uncollectibles Amount

272,798 § - 5 272,798
1,962,585 - 1,962,585
1,750,755 - 1,750,755
5,493,959 - 5,493,959
9.480,097 $ - §  9480.097

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Caital being d iated:
Construction in PrOZrEss... ....cc.ovvveiorveiererrircene

Total capital assets not being depreciated. .. ...... ..

aital e .,
VEHICIES. .o oevt et e e e e
Buildings..........coocoieviiii e
Right to use lease - eqUIPMEIL. .. ......coocovverrrriecerinenes
Machinery and equipneent............
Infrastructure...........o oo iee e

Total capital assets being depreciated...............

l ESS ﬂEE!l]D[]I axgd di]ﬂ[ﬁﬂlag‘ﬁﬂ mr
Vehicles. ..o
Right to use lease - equipment........
Machinery and equipment................coocceiineinnn.
Infrastructure... ...

Total accumulated depreciation......................

Total capital assets being depreciated, net..................

.8

Total capital assets, net.............ccocccveeveerriiennne $

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
7558882 § 144,147 § - § 7,703,029
3.818.779 11,050.881 (1,084,760) 13,784,900
11,377,661 11,195,028 (1.084.760) 21,487.929
1.010,531 $ 84530 § - 8 1,095,061
13,813,375 1,084,760 - 14,898,135
2,397,499 - - 2,397,499
3,259,826 124,715 - 3,384,541
61,037.736 864,575 - 61902311
81,518.967 2,158,580 - 83,677,547
(765.461) (85.897) - (851,358)
(680,141) (296,888) - (977,029)
(149,844) (299,687) - (449,531)
(2.834,252) (73,723} - (2.907,975)
(26.155.888) (1,176 467) - (27,332,355)
(30.585,586) (1,932,662) - (32,518.248)
50.933.381 225918 - 51,159.299
62311042 § 11420946 $ (1,084760) $ 72647228
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

NOTE 5 - LEASE RECEIVABLE

The District has several lease agreements related to land usage for the operation of solar energy
generating and storage fields as well as for cellular towers. The lease agreements related to land usage
for the operation of solar energy generating and storage fields was the result of special legislation passed
for the District. See Note 12 for further information.

Under the current lease agreements, the District is scheduled to receive lease payments through 2044.
The future scheduled lease revenues as of June 30, 2025, are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
20260 $ 322,821 § 135225 § 458,046
2027 i, 333,355 136,612 469,967
2028, . 318,569 127,598 446,167
2029, 263,830 118,991 382,821
203000, 271,341 111,805 383,146
2031-2035.....ccuvnnnenn. 1,475,304 445,646 1,920,950
2036-2040................ 1,690,007 240,651 1,930,658
2041-2044................ 818,732 36,814 855,546
Total.....cccrvcenne ... $ 5493959 § 1,353,342 § 6,847,301

NOTE 6 - LEASE PAYABLE

The District has entered into a lease agreement for the use of filtration equipment in one of the District’s
treatment plants for per- and poly fluoroalkyl contamination mitigation efforts. The cost of the assets
acquired through the lease totaled $2.4 million, and the accumulated depreciation on those assets totaled
$450,000.
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The future operating lease payments under this agreement are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2026.....ciiiiiiannnn, $ 268,755 $ 52965 $ 321,720
2027 i, 282,896 45,258 328,154
2028. comnsc s eeen e e 297,563 37,154 334,717
2029 . sssnianiinihien e o n e s 312,784 28,628 341,412
2030, sssvswsmmasitss e o e s 328,571 19,669 348,240
2031 sassasiiaaniisinice v o oo vt 344,945 10,260 355,205
2032, il 177,902 1,458 179,360
Total....ccoieeiieeereeennen, $ 2013416 $ 195392 $ 2.208.808

NOTE 7 —- SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

o Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue notes
(RANS).
e Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent
financing through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. The District
had the following short-term debt activity during 2025:

Balance at Balance at
Rate June 30, Renewed/ Retired/ June 30,

Type Purpose (%) Due Date 2024 Issued Redeemed 2025
BAN  MCWT Interim Loan. .............. 0.00% OnDemand § 472974 $ 157914 § (630,888) $
BAN  MCWT InterimLoan............... 0.00% On Demand - 3,019,340 (1,021,338) 1,998,002
BAN  MCWT Interim Loan............... 0.00% On Demand - 5,411,815 (1,397,489) 4,014,326
BAN  Bond Anticipation Note........... 4.75% 7/25/2024 976,000 (976,000) -
BAN  Bond Anticipation Note........... 5.05% 10/25/2024 - 976,000 (976,000)
BAN Bond Anticipation Note........... 4.25% 9/27/2024 5,900.000 (5.900.000)

TOtAL .o $ 7348974 $ 9565069 $ (10901.715) § 6.012.328

)
2
€)]
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1) The District entered into an interim loan with the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (“MCWT”)
in 2024 totaling $1.0 million for the purposes of financing costs of the NAWTP drinking water
project. During the interim funding period, the District was allowed to draw funds from the Trust
on an interest free basis. The interim loan was permanently financed during 2025 and is included
in long-term debt.

2) In 2025, the District entered into interim loans with the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust
(MCWT) in 2025, in the amounts of $7.6 million and $10.4 million for the purposes of financing
costs of drinking water projects, related to two of the District’s water treatment plants. During
the interim funding period, the District is allowed to draw funds from the Trust on an interest-
free basis. Upon completion of the project, and notice from MCWT, the interim financing will be
converted to long-term debt, by the Trust. At this point, a permanent debt funding schedule will
be established. As of June 30, 2025, the District incurred approximately $4.1 million and $6.6
million of eligible construction costs related to the two projects and has received corresponding
loan proceeds in the amount of $2.6 million and $4.9 million, as well as reissuances of previous
outstanding BANS totaling $426,000 and $506,000, for these projects respectively. In 2025, the
District was awarded $2.4 million of principal loan forgiveness from the MCWT.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of

5% of the equalized valuation. Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2025, and the
debt service requirements are as follows:

Original Interest Outstanding
Maturities Loan Rate at June 30,
Project Through Amount (%) 2025
General Obligation Bonds:
General Obligation Bond 0£2009........... 2029 § 6,000,000 2.00-430 § 1,200,000
General Obligation Bond 0of 2014........... 2024 2,135,000  2.00-3.00 2.710.000
Total General Obligation Bonds.............ccccoovvviiiiiiiiniiii = 3,910,000
Direct Borrowings and Placements:
MCWT Loan DW-19-16... .....ccocooonenes 2043 11,796,233 1.50 10,783,967
MCWT Loan DW-12-19..........ccovein. 2035 13,470,767 2.00 7,456,689
MCWT Loan DW-23-01........cccocoerernnnn. 2035 684,000 0.00 630,888
Total Direct Borrowings and Placements... ... 18,871,544
Total Bonds Payable..............o.o 22,781,544
Add: Unamortized premiumonbonds...................ccooii 190.000
Total Bond Payable, Bet.............ccooivvvitiit i et ceeeeeein et e ienenen B 22.971,544
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for business-type bonds payable in future years are
as follows:
General Obligation Bonds Direct Borrowings and Placements
Year Principal Interest Principal (1) Interest Total
2026........... $ 485,000 $ 169,937 § 1,194,413 § 310,893 2,160,243
2027........... 485,000 152,150 1,217,728 289,596 2,144,474
2028........... 485,000 130,300 1,241,505 267,880 2,124,685
2029........... 485,000 108,300 1,265,755 245,730 2,104,785
2030........... 185,000 86,150 1,290,487 223,140 1,784,771
2031........... 185,000 76,900 1,315,709 200,104 1,777,713
2032...... . 185,000 67,650 1,341,433 176,606 1,770,689
2033........... 180,000 58,400 1,367,669 152,640 1,758,709
2034........... 180,000 49,400 1,394,425 128,200 1,752,025
2035........... 180,000 42,200 1,421,713 103,272 1,747,185
2036........... 175,000 35,000 611,870 77,846 899,716
2037........... 175,000 28,000 622,050 68,668 893,718
2038........... 175,000 21,000 632,399 59,336 887,735
2039........... 175,000 14,000 642,921 49,850 881,771
2040........... 175,000 7,000 653,617 40,206 875,823
2041........... - - 664,492 30,402 694,894
2042........... - - 675,547 20,436 695,983
2043........... - - 686,923 10,302 697,225
Total.......... $ 3910000 $ 1046387 § 18,240,656 $ 4910214 $ 28.107257

(1) The principal and interest debt service schedule for the MCWT Loan DW-23-01 has been

excluded from the above future debt service requirements because the permanent schedule
provided by MCWT is currently based on the total loan funds available, rather than the actual
amounts drawn by the District. Once the MCWT reissues a permanent debt service schedule

reflecting only the amounts drawn, the corresponding principal and interest debt service

requirements will be included.
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Bonds Bonds Other Other Ending Due Within

Balance Issued Redeemed Increases Decreases Balance One Year
General obligationbonds.......................5 1,500,000 § 2,710,000 $ (300,000) $ -8 - § 3910000 § 485,000
Direct borrowings and placements............. 19,412,208 630,888 (1,171,552) - - 18,871,544 1,287,034
Add: Unamortized premiums on bonds..... - 190,000 - - - 190,000 24,682
Total long-termdebt...........cccccivii e 20,912,208 3,530,888 (1,471,552) - - 22,971,544 1,772,034
Lease payable.......c..cooocoviicrincrnenee 2,268,544 - - - (255,128) 2,013,416 268,755
Compensated absences.......................... 197,000 - - 232,070 (30,070) 399,000 31,000
Net pension liability.......................... 4,514,809 - - 207,521 (354,740) 4.367,590 -
Net OPEB liability/(asset)..........c.....c..... 421,829 117,949 (461.872) 77.906 -
Total...ooooeee e, 8 28314390 § 3530888 § (1,471,552) % 557.540 §  (1,101.810;$  26.829.456 § 2071789

The District is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt
under the normal debt limit. At June 30, 2025, the District had the following authorized and unissued

debt:

Purpose Amount

NAWTP PEAS. ..ottt e $ 162,505
Lead Service Line Inventory & Replacement Program..................... 400,000
SAWTP PFAS Filtration. .........coooeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeans 1,134,538
Backwash Upgrades - Clapp/Whitcomb Treatment plant.................. 955,000
Lead Service Line Inventory & Replacement Program..................... 500,000
CAWTP PFAS Filtration and Construction of Bedrock Wells............ 231
Replacement of Filtration Media................oooviiiiiinnn. 100,000
1. Y SO OO O PPNt $ 3252274

NOTE 9 - RISK FINANCING

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District carries commercial insurance.

The District participates in a premium-based health care plan for its active employees. The District
purchases insurance for workers’ compensation and unemployment compensation activities.
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NOTE 10 —- PENSION PLAN
Plan Description

The District contributes to the Middlesex County Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible employees of the 76 member units. The MCRS
is administered by five board members (Board) on behalf of all current employees and retirees except
for current teachers and retired teachers. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions of the plan.

Benefits Provided

The Systems provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are, with certain minor
exceptions, uniform from system to system. The Systems provide retirement allowance benefits up to a
maximum of 80% of a member's highest three-year average annual rate of regular compensation. For
persons who became members on or after April 2, 2012, average salary is the average annual rate of
regular compensation received during the five consecutive years that produce the highest average, or, if
greater, during the last five years (whether or not consecutive) preceding retirement. Benefit payments
are based upon a member's age, length of creditable service, level of compensation, and group
classification. Members become vested after ten years of creditable service.

Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance or are
under the age of 55 are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Survivor
benefits are extended to eligible beneficiaries of members whose death occurs prior to or following
retirement.

Cost-of-living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed
by the Commonwealth’s state law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited
into the pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and
are borne by the System.

Contributions

Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members and member units. Active plan
members are required to contribute at rates ranging from 5% to 9% of gross regular compensation with
an additional 2% contribution required for compensation exceeding $30,000. The percentage rate is
keyed to the date upon which an employee's membership commences. The District is required to pay
into the System a legislatively mandated actuarial determined contribution. The District’s contribution
totaled $354,740 and was 28.91% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with plan member contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan
members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
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Pension Liabilities

At June 30, 2025, the District reported a liability of $4,367,590 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2024, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January
1, 2024. Accordingly, update procedures were used to update the total pension liability to the
measurement date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of
all participating members, actuarially determined. At December 31, 2024, the District’s proportion was
0.27%, which remained the same from the last measurement of December 31, 2023.

Pension Expense

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized pension expense of $454,699. The balances of
deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions at June 30, 2025, consist of the following:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Deferred Category Resources Resources Total
Differences between expected and actual experience...................... $ 96,538 § -3 96,538
Difference between projected and actual earnings, net.................... 136,130 - 136,130
Changes in asSUMPHONS. .......eeereiiiiiiien e ceie e, 14,583 - 14,583
Changes in proportion and proportionate share of contributions......... 91,833 (76,456) 15,377
Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources.............c.coeveeenent. $ 339,084 $ (76,456) $ 262,628

The net deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Yeare une 30:

2026....ciiiiiiiiiii $ 119,884
2027 i 202,004
2028 i (22,323)
2029 i (36.937)
Total...oooiviiiiiiiiiiiin, $ 262,628
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2024, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement that was updated to December
31, 2024:

Valuationdate..........cccovvevriieeennnnn. Jamuary 1, 2024

Actuarial cost method..................... Entry age normal cost method.
Inflationrate..........coeeeeiniiniiiinnns 3.25%

Investment rate of return................... 715%.

Discount rate..........ccveuunriinieenennnn, 7.15%

Projected salary increases................ Varies by length of service with ultimate rate of 4.00% for

Group 1, 4.25% for Group 2 and 4.50% for Group 4

Cost of living adjustments.............. . 3% of first $16,000.

Mortality rates........cccceerreiriirennnnnn, Pre-retirement rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Employees table projected generationally with Scale MP-

Post-retirement rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy
Annuitant table projected generationally with Scale MP-2021.
For disabled retirees, the rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue
Collar Healthy Annuitant table set forward 1 year projected
generationally with Scale MP-2021.

Investment Policy

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be
amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of
achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of January 1, 2024, are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected  Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic equity............veeverveenes Seveneenransiios 23.50% 5.82%
International developed markets equity............. 9.00% 5.91%
International emerging markets equity............... 3.50% 7.06%
Core fixed income..........coccvenniiiiiiininninnen. 15.00% 1.81%
High-yield fixed income...........cc.ccvevnennnenn. 9.00% 3.34%
Real estate........coevuveniiiiiiniiiiiiiiniiiennn, 10.00% 3.34%
TImber.....oeviie e 4.00% 3.82%
Hedge funds, GTAA, risk parity..................... 10.00% 2.77%
Private equity........ccoevviiiiiiiiiiiiii, 16.00% 9.20%

Total..ooeeine e 100.00%

Rate of Return

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 9.07%. The money-weighted rate of return
expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts
actually invested.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% at December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will be made at
rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as
what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower (6.15%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
The District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability...............c.ooeenis $ 5,539,382 §$ 4,367,590 $ 3,381,973

Changes in Assumptions
None.
Changes in Plan Provisions

None.

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description

The Water Supply District of Acton administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the
Retiree Health Plan™). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their
spouses through the District’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired
members. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the
plan. The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for
money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts (repurchase
agreements) that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.
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Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and may be amended by
the District. The required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. Retired plan
members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits are required to contribute 80% of the cost
medical benefits. The District is required to contribute the balance of the current premiums and may
contribute additional amounts to pre-fund benefits. The District contributed $109,440 during 2025
toward these benefits. Administrative costs of the Plan are assumed to be included in the fully insured
premium rates. For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District’s average contribution rate as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll was 8.64%.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts passed special legislation that has allowed the District to establish
the postemployment benefit trust fund and to enable the District to pre-fund its OPEB liabilities. During
2025, the District did not pre-fund future OPEB liabilities by contributing funds to the other
postemployment benefit fund in excess of the pay-as-you-go required contribution. As of June 30, 2025,
the balance in the other postemployment benefit trust totaled $1.6 million.

Plan Membership

The following table represents the Plan’s membership at July 1, 2023:

Active members. .....coceeveeriiiiiiiiiiiiii i 14
Inactive members currently receiving benefits........ 12
Total. .o 26

Components of Net OPEB Liability

The following table represents the components of the Plan’s net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2025:

Total OPEB liability........ovvenveneiineenennnnnen. $ 1,659,201
Less: OPEB plan's fiduciary net position........... (1,581.295)
Net OPEB liability.........oeuveuveniininieieninnnnn. $ 77,906

The OPEB plan's fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total OPEB liability....... 95.30%
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Significant Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined by using the actuarial
assumptions as noted, applied to all periods included in the measurement that was updated to June 30,
2025, to be in accordance with GASB Statement #74 and GASB Statement #75. For this valuation date
and measurement date, the District has elected to use the Alternative Measurement Method (AMM) to
determine the actuarial liability for its OPEB obligations. The AMM is a simplified approach, and the
District’s use of this method is permitted by accounting standards due to the limited number of active
members and inactive members currently receiving benefits.

Valuation date.......coovviviiniinrininennneenns. July 1, 2023

Actuarial cost method.................cooent, Entry Age Normal Cost Method (Alternative Measurement Method)
InflationRate.............ccooeiiiiiiiinnnn.n. 3.00%

Salary inCreases........ooeeeeeeeeeieiininnnn.. 4.00%

Investment rate of return/Discount Rate...... 7.00%

Healthcare cost trend rates.................... 5% for HMO and PPO Plan, Pre-Medicare, and 3.25% for

Medicare Supplement Plan; 2% for Dental Plan. Ultimate Health
Care Cost Trend Rate of 4.5% reached in fiscal year 2037.

Average Retirement/Elections................ Average Retirement Age was 65, and 100% of current employees
are assumed to elect coverage at retirement.

TWnover rates.......o.ovveevniieiiineeninennnn. Table T-5 from the Pension Actuary’s Handbook was used.

Coverage status........oevveiiiiiiiiiiinenne, Employees are assumed to continue into retirement at their current
coverage level.

Marital Status........ccocieiiiiiiiiiiiiin.. 50% of employees are assumed to be married wit males three years
older than females. Actual spouse data is used for current retirees.

Mortality rates......coveviiiiiiniiniiennen Determined pursuant to PubG.H-2010 Mortality Table - General,
using scale MP-2020.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2025, and 5.98% as
of June 30, 2024. A projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate shows that the OPEB
plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments for the
lifetime of every individual in the census.

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of
investment expense, was 14.75%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return of by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and subtracting
expected investment expense and a risk margin.

The target allocation and projected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class, after

deducting inflation, but before investment expenses, used in the derivation of the long-term expected
investment rate of return assumption are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected  Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Money market funds.................... 5.00% 2.00%

Fixed income......covvenniiiiiiiinnnn. 30.00% 6.00%
Equities......oovuvvviiieneiiiiieennen, 50.00% 8.00%
Exchange traded funds.................. 10.00% 8.00%

Other assetS....ovvviiiireeeeeiiiiianens 5.00% 6.00%

Total. ..o 100.00%
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Changes in the Net OPEB Liability/(Asset):

Increase (Decrease)
Plan
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position  Liability/(asset

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balances at June 30,2024...........ccoiiiiiiniiiinin, $ 1,799,850 § 1,378,021 § 421,829
Changes for the year:
Service Cost.....ooviviiiiiiiiii e 13,552 - 13,552
INerest. ....ocoviniiiiiiiiiii 104,397 - 104,397
Changes in assumptions... (149,158) - (149,158)
Employer contributions for OPEB payments ............. - 109,440 (109,440)
Net investment inCOME. ........o.evuerrinereenenmmineenennns - 203,274 (203,274)
Benefit payments. ... (109,440) (109,440) -
Netchange..............ccooiiiiiiiiii (140.649) 203,274 (343.923)
Balances at June 30, 2025...........coiiiiiiiiini $ 1,659,201 § 1,581,295 § 77.906

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the net OPEB liability/(asset), calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%,
as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00%) than the current discount rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Net OPEB liability/(asset)............ $ 247,513 $ 77,906 $ (63,675)
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
The following table presents the net OPEB liability/(asset), calculated using the current healthcare trend
rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend

rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher.

1% Decrease Current Trend 1% Increase

Net OPEB liability/(asset)...... $ (76,052) $ 77,906 $ 263,376

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the financial reporting year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized OPEB expense of 140,060.
The District also reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Deferred Category Resources Resources Total

Differences between expected and actual experience..... $ 375,517 $ (29,995) $ 345,522

Difference between projected and actual earning, net..... - 97,561) (97,561)
Changes in assumptions.........cco.oeevcivinierininncnennnn. 116,960 (166,539) (49,579)
Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources............ $ 492477 $  (294,095) $ 198,382

Amounts reported as deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense in the following periods:

Reporting year ended June 30:

2026 e $ 69,238
2027 i 10,502
2028 44,153
2029 61,101
2030 . e 18,533
2031 (5.145)
Total.......oooooooiiiil, S $ 198,382
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Changes of Assumptions
The discount rate increased from 5.98% to 7.00%.
Changes in Plan Provisions

None.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

Superfund Cleanup Projects

The District continues to be engaged in legal and environmental negotiations with the Massachusetts
Department of Environmental Protection and the Federal Environmental Protection Agency regarding
the Superfund cleanup projects. These efforts are also intended to protect the Assabet well field &
School Street well fields.

Per — and Polyfluoroalky] Substances Contamination
Special Item

The District was awarded a net payout of $4.2 million from The 3M Company (“3M”) related to a class
action law suit to prosecute any legal claim for negligence against any and all parties, individuals, or
corporations that are found to be liable under the law for injuries and/or property damages arising from
contamination of Per — and Poly fluoroalkyl (“PFAS™) in the water supply. This award amount is
scheduled to be paid to the District over an eight year period. The District reported a special item
representing the cash payment received during 2025 totaling $611,254 and a receivable totaling
$1,400,928 for payments received subsequent to year end. The timing and total of the remaining
payments, net of attorney fees, owed to the District is not determinable at this time, and therefore the
District did not report these as receivables.

In 2025, the District was also awarded a payout from DuPont de Nemours, Inc (“Dupont”) related to the
same class action lawsuit against 3M. The District recorded a receivable for the payout amount received

by the District from the Dupont settlement subsequent to year end totaling $350,000.

Subsequent payouts from Tyco, and BASF are yet to be finalized, therefore the District did not report
these as receivables.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Other

To further address PFAS contamination based on currently known regulations, the District has assessed
capital improvements to their existing Water Treatment Plants as well as the Bedrock Wells. The
District was approved by the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (“MCWT”) to borrow $1.0 million,
interest free, to finance modifications needed at the North Acton Water Treatment Plant to accommodate
PFAS filtration equipment. The closing documents for the Interim Loan were executed and submitted to
MCWT. In October of 2023, the District received notification that they qualify for partial loan
forgiveness for this project in the amount of $316,000. A financing agreement amendment was signed
and submitted bringing the total amount to be borrowed down to $684,000. The District is leasing the
PFAS filtration equipment from Veolia WTS Services USA, Inc for a period of 8 years. The North
Acton Water Treatment Plant project has been completed, and on June 1, 2024, the plant began sending
water with non-detectable levels of PFAS to the distribution system. As of the close of 2025, the Interim
Loan was permanently financed with the MCWT for a period of ten years.

At the District’s March 2023 Annual District Meeting, the District was authorized to borrow $5.4
million, $8.7 million, and $2.4 million from the MCWT for the Center Acton Water Treatment Plant,
South Acton Water Treatment Plant, and Bedrock Wells, respectively. During 2025, the District began
construction on the South Acton Water Treatment Plant and Center Acton Water Treatment Plant
projects, and Bedrock Wells projects. It should be noted that the District requested that the Center Acton
Water Treatment Plant and Bedrock Wells projects be combined, and the request was granted by the
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) and MCWT. Following the bid openings
for the Center Acton Water Treatment Plant and Bedrock Wells project, it was determined that the
original borrowing authorization was inadequate. On June 13, 2024, the District held a Special District
meeting and voters authorized the District to borrow an additional $2,532,000 for the Center Acton
Water Treatment Plant and Bedrock Wells projects. Interim financing for the projects through the
MCWT was put in place in October 2024. In December 2024, the District received notification that they
qualify for partial loan forgiveness for these projects. Total anticipated forgiveness totals $1,021,338 for
the South Acton Water Treatment Plant project and $1,397,489 for the Center Acton Water Treatment
Plant and Bedrock Wells project. These loans are scheduled to be permanently financed with the MCWT
in February 2026 for a period of twenty years.

The District currently incurs costs related to the PFAS contamination. It is possible that the District may
be responsible for further costs associated with PFAS remediation, and these future costs may be
significant. While the amounts may be substantial the ultimate liability cannot be determined because of
the considerable uncertainties that exist. Therefore, it is possible that there could be material negative
outcomes affected by certain contingencies existing as of June 30, 2025. The full extent of the financial
impact cannot be determined at the date of the financial statements.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Litigation

Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the
outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if
any, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position at June 30, 2025.

NOTE 13 - ARTICLE 97 STABILIZATION FUND

Article 97 of the Amendments to the Massachusetts Constitution (the “Article”) establishes a right to a
clean environment including its natural, scenic, historical, and aesthetic qualities for the citizens of the
Commonwealth. The Article also declares the conservation of natural resources a public purpose and
provides that land or easements subject to the Article cannot be used for other purposes or disposed of
without a two-thirds roll call vote of the Legislature. On August 7, 2020, the Commonwealth enacted
special legislation that authorized The Water Supply District of Acton (“District”) to enter into a lease,
license or other disposition of land held for water supply purposes for the construction, operation, and
maintenance of a solar energy generating and energy storage facility. The land under this authorization
is located off Lawsbrook Road and Knox Trail within the Town of Acton.

The special legislation required that the District establish a stabilization fund for the purpose of
acquiring qualified land for water supply and protection purposes to replace the land now used as solar
energy generating and storage fields. The District must deposit 5% of each lease payment or any other
proceeds received as compensation for the use of the leased land up to a cumulative amount equal to the
fair market value or value in proposed use, whichever is greater, of the leased land.

In 2024, the District used short term borrowings to purchase qualifying land, which satisfied the terms of
the special legislation as of December 7, 2023. The balance of the Article 97 Stabilization Fund
accumulated from previous deposits was used upon permanent financing of the debt, which occurred in
2025.

NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through , 2025 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2025

NOTE 15 - IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

During 2025, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:

e GASB Statement #101, Compensated Absences. This pronouncement was implemented in 2025.
The District has evaluated the impact of implementing GASB 101 and determined that the effect
on the financial statements is not material. As a result, the District implemented GASB 101 at the
beginning of the year.

o GASB Statement #102, Certain Risk Disclosures. This pronouncement did not impact the basic
financial statements.

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in the future:

e The GASB issued Statement #103. Firancial Reporting Model Improvements, which is required
to be implemented in 2026.

¢ The GASB issued Statement #104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, which is required to be
implemented in 2026.

Management is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on
the basic financial statements.
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Pension Plan Schedules

The Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend
information on the District’s net pension liability and related ratios.

The Schedule of the District’s Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the District’s
required and actual contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Middlesex County Retirement System

Net position Plan fiduciary
Proportionate liability as a net position as
Proportion of share of the percentage of a percentage of
the net pension net pension covered the total
Year liability/(asset)  liability/(asset) Covered Pavroll payroll pension liability
December 31, 2024...... 0.27% $ 4,367,590 $ 1,203,105 363.03% 58.24%
December 31, 2023...... 0.27% 4,514,809 1,155,228 390.82% 55.21%
December 31, 2022...... 0.25% 4,310,937 1,296,052 332.62% 52.61%
December 31, 2021...... 0.24% 3,246,366 1,246,732 260.39% 61.14%
December 31, 2020...... 0.23% 3,548,184 1,275,867 278.10% 49.45%
December 31, 2019...... 0.23% 3.732,674 1,225,561 304.57% 49.45%
December 31, 2018...... 0.24% 3.740,627 1,188,771 314.66% 46.40%
December 31, 2017...... 0.24% 3,370,594 1,141,452 295.29% 49.27%
December 31, 2016...... 0.23% 3,319,310 1,136,133 292.16% 45.49%
December 31, 2015...... 0.22% 2,784,648 1,013,745 274.69% 46.13%

See notes to required supplementary information.



Water Supply District of Acton
Schedule of the District’s Contributions

Middlesex County Retirement System

Contributions in

relation to the Contributions as

Actuarially actuarially Contribution a percentage of
determined determined deficiency Covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
June 30,2025............ $ 354,740 $ 354,740 $ - 3 1,227,167 28.91%
June 30, 2024............ 330,838 330,838 - 1,178,333 28.08%
June 30,2023............ 288,240 288,240 - 1,321,973 21.80%
June 30, 2022............ 268,502 268,502 - 1,271,667 21.11%
June 30, 2021............ 256,971 256.971 - 1,301,384 19.75%
June 30, 2020............ 243,164 243,164 - 1,250,072 19.45%
June 30, 2019............ 218,063 218,063 - 1,212,546 17.98%
June 30, 2018............ 203,213 203,213 - 1,164,281 17.45%
June 30, 2017............ 177,725 177,725 - 1,158,856 15.34%
June 30, 2016............ 165,791 165,791 - 1,034,020 16.03%

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment Benefit Plan Schedules

The Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability/(Asset) and
Related Ratios presents multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability,
changes in the Plan’s net position, and ending net OPEB liability/(asset). It also demonstrates the Plan’s
net position as a percentage of the total liability and the Plan’s net other postemployment benefit
liability/(asset) as a percentage of covered-employee payroll.

The Schedule of the District’s Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the District’s
actual contributions to the other postemployment benefit plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of Investment Returns presents multi-year trend information on the money-weighted
investment return on the Plan’s other postemployment assets, net of investment expense.

These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled,
information is presented for those years for which information is available.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) and Related Ratios

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
‘Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost. 18,046 § 18,605 § 19350 § 22376 § 24,148 $ 21,401 § 25954 § 17,546 § 13,552

Intesest... 58,372 73,230 78,986 82,041 75,789 78,652 68,263 69,655 104,397

Changes ofbeneﬁt terms.. e - - - - - - - (83) -

Differences between expecwd md actual experience. - 33,670 . (60,438) {83,077) - 546,256 -

Changes of assumptions . - 18,838 - {66,514) - {50,328) 136,374 (149,158)

Other Charges 19,824 20,229 26,014 {46) - - - -

Benefit payments... ........ocoue e i i (76,445) {80,182 {84.498) (76922) (56,551 (61,498) (84.325) (39.297) (109 440
Net change in total OPEB liability. 19,797 $4,390 39,852 (99,503) 43386 (94,850) 9,892 730,451 (140,649)
Total OPEB liability - beginning.............cocccnenererenns 1,066,435 1,086,232 1,170,622 1,210,474 1110971 1,154,357 1,059,507 1,069,399 1,799,850
Total OPEB liability - ending (8)..............ocooiiieinnnnns H 1,086232 $ 1,170622 § 1210474 $ 1110971 § 1,154357 % 1,059.507_§ 1069399 § 1,799.850 _$ 1,659,201
Plan fiducisry net position

Employer contributions... 100,000 $ 100,000 § 100,000 $ -3 - 3 - 3 - 5 -3 -

Employer contributions for OPEB paymenIs 76,445 80,182 84,498 76,922 56,551 61,498 40,083 39,297 109,440

Net investment income (loss; 55,673 54,890 87,382 50,492 242,771 {206,757) 173471 144,553 203,274

QOther benefit payments. .. {76,445) (80.182) {84,498) (76,922) (56,551) (61,498) (40,083) (39,297) (109,440)

Direct benefit payments. . - - - - - - (84,325) {109.347) -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position...................... 155,673 154,890 187,382 50492 247,771 (206,757) 89,146 35,206 203,274
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning of year............... 664218 819,891 974,781 1,162,163 1,212,655 1,460,426 1.253.669 1,342,815 1,378,021
Plan fiduciary net position - end of year (b).................. § 819,891 § 974,781 8 1,162,163 $ 1212655 § 1460426 § 1,253,669 § 1342815 § 1378.021 § 1,581,295
Net OPEB liability/(asset) - ending (a)-(b).........ccco0e0n $ 266341 § 195841 § 48311 § (101,684) § (306.069) § {194.162) $ (273.416) 8 421.829 8 77906
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total OPEB liability. .. 75.48% 83.27% 96.01% 109.15% 126.51% 118.33% 125.57% 76.56% 95.30%
Covered-employee payroll...........cooooviiiniiniiinnininnn $ 1,167318 § 1,191,141 § 1,230,570 § 1,249659 § 1317826 § 1,344,183 § 1,371,066 $ 1,218,805 § 1,266,764
Net OPEB liability/(asset) as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll..........c..ooooee i 22.82% 16.44% 3.93% -8.14% -23.23% -14.44% -19.94% 34.61% 6.15%
Note: this schedule is intended o present information for 10 years. Until a 10-year trend is iled, i ion is p d for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Schedule of the District’s Contributions

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

Contributions in

relation to the Contributions as
Actuarially actuarially Contribution a percentage of
determined determined deficiency Covered- covered-
Year contribution contribution (excess) employee payroll employee payroll
June 30, 2025............ $ 109,440 $ (109.440) $ - 3 1,266,764 8.64%
June 30, 2024............ 39,297 (39,297) - 1,218,805 3.22%
June 30, 2023............ 84,325 (84,325) - 1,371,066 6.15%
June 30,2022............ 61,498 (61,498) - 1,344,183 4.58%
June 30, 2021............ 56,551 (56,551) - 1,317,826 4.29%
June 30, 2020...... Vereas 76,922 (76,922) - 1,249,659 6.16%
June 30,2019............ 84.498 (184,498) (100,000) 1,230,570 14.99%
June 30, 2018............ 80,182 (180,182) (100,000) 1,191,141 15.13%
June 30, 2017............ 76.445 (176,445) (100,000) 1,167,318 15.12%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Schedule of Investment Returns

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

Annual money-weighted
rate of return,

Year net of investment expense
June 30,2025.........cciiiiinenen. 14.75%

June 30,2024, 10.91%

June 30,2023 ...l 7.11%

June 30,2022 ... -14.16%

June 30,2021l 15.38%

June 30,2020, 7.48%

June 30,2019.....iiiiiii e 8.53%

June 30,2018, 6.31%

June 30,2017 .o, 7.81%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2025

NOTE A - PENSION PLAN

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability details the allocated
percentages of the net pension liability, the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the
employee payroll. It also demonstrates the net position as a percentage of the pension liability and the
net pension liability as a percentage of employee payroll.

Schedule of the District’s Contributions

Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
total appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member’s retirement
allowance, an amount to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance
with the system’s funding schedule, and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early
retirement incentive programs. The total appropriations are payable on July 1 and January 1. The
District may choose to pay the entire appropriation in July at a discounted rate. Accordingly, actual
District contributions may be less than the “total appropriation”.

Changes in Assumptions

None.

Changes in Plan Provisions

None.

NOTE B - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“The Retiree Health Plan™).
The plan provides lifetime healthcare, dental and life insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses
through the District’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members.

The Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability/(Asset) and
Related Ratios

The Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability/(Asset) and
Related Ratios presents multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability,
changes in the Plan’s net position, and ending net OPEB liability/(asset). It also demonstrates the Plan’s
net position as a percentage of the total liability and the Plan’s net OPEB liability/(asset) as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Schedule of the District’s Contributions

The Schedule of the District’s Contributions includes the District’s annual required contribution to the
Plan, along with the contributions made in relation to the actuarially determined contribution and the
covered-employee payroll. The District is not required to fully fund this contribution. It also
demonstrates the contributions as a percentage of covered payroll. Methods and assumptions used to
determine contribution rates are as follows:

Valuationdate.........cocovuveiiniiiiiininnn, July 1, 2023

Actuarial costmethod.....................lll Entry Age Normal Cost Method (Alternative Measurement Method)
Inflation Rate........c.cooviviniiiniiinnnininn, 3.00%

Salary increases.......c.coovveveivneiininnne. 4.00%

Investment rate of return/Discount Rate....... 7.00%

Healthcare cost trend rates.........cc.eeuee.... 5% for HMO and PPO Plan, Pre-Medicare, and 3.25% for

Medicare Supplement Plan; 2% for Dental Plan. Ultimate Health
Care Cost Trend Rate of 4.5% reached in fiscal year 2037.

Average Retirement/Elections................ Average Retirement Age was 65, and 100% of current employees
are assumed to elect coverage at retirement.

TUMOVET TAIES. ..venrnreieeeeiaiinirnereenanes Table T-5 from the Pension Actuary’s Handbook was used.

Coverage Statls......cocveviveriniverenenanennn Employees are assumed to continue into retirement at their current
coverage level.

Marital Status........cocooviiiiiiiniiin, 50% of employees are assumed to be married wit males three years
older than females. Actual spouse data is used for current retirees.

Mortality rates.......ovevveeneniieneneeinininn Determined pursuant to PubG.H-2010 Mortality Table - General,
using scale MP-2020.

Schedule of Investment Returns

The Schedule of Investment Returns includes the money-weighted investment return on the Plan’s other

postemployment assets, net of investment expense.
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate increased from 5.98% to 7.00%.

Changes in Plan Provisions

None.
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Combining Schedules
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Combining Schedules

The Water Supply District of Acton accounts for the general operations, the W.R. Grace stabilization
fund, and capital acquisitions of the District as separate activities and the internal ledgers report them as
indicated below. The schedules provide a reconciliation between the internal ledgers and financial
statements.

General Fund — This fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources,
except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.

Per — and Poly Fluoroalkyl Substances (“PFAS”) — This fund is used to account for the settlement
receipts received by the District and the related uses of those settlement receipts. The settlement receipts
are related to the class action lawsuit to prosecute any legal claim for negligence against any and all
parties, individuals, or corporations that are found to be liable under the law for injuries and/or property
damages arising from contamination of water supplies by PFAS.

Article 97 Stabilization Fund- This fund was established through special legislation in the current fiscal
year with funds from District owned land leased by the District for solar energy generation and storage.
5% of the funds from the leases must be deposited into this fund. The purpose of this fund is for the
District to acquire qualified land for water supply and protection purposes to replace the land now used
as solar energy generating and storage fields.

W.R. Grace Stabilization Fund — This fund is used to maintain the purity of the District’s water sources
upon approval of District meeting. This fund was established with proceeds from the W.R. Grace
lawsuit settlement and was converted to a stabilization fund at the June 2020 Annual Meeting to enable
investments to be managed under the prudent investment rule established under Massachusetts General
Law Chapter 203c.

Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the acquisition or

construction of capital facilities and other capital assets of the District.

Long-Term Obligations Fund — This fund is used to account for liabilities that have maturities greater
than one year.

Capital Assets Fund — This fund is used to account for capital asset additions, retirements and
depreciation expense.
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Water Supply District of Acton

Combining Schedule of Net Position

ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments................
Receivables, net of allowance for umncollectibles:
Billed user charges.
Unbilled user charge
Leases...
Settlement receivables.

Total current asssts. .. .

NONCURRENT:

ivables, net of all

for

Capiral assets. non depreciabl
Capital assets. net of accumulated depreciation,

Total NONCUMENE ASSELS. .. 1..ocvcotreenaen et e cn vre e

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions...........ccoc oo verven e
Deferred outflows related to OPEB................cccoceeiene

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES. ...........

CURRENT:
Warrants payable .. ..o
Accrued interest...
Lease obligations..
Compensated absences.
Notes payable
Bonds payable..

Total current liabilities. .

NONCURRENT:
Lease ObHBAONS ... ... e oo vve et ceneee e cve e rer e e eeearn e
Compensated abserces.
Net pension liability.
Net OPEB tiability
Bonds payable..

Total noncustent liabilities... .........o.oooviinio s

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to leases..
Deferred inflows related to pensions.
Deferred inflows related to OPEB....

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES...............

NET POSITION
Net investment in capita) assets...
Unrestricted - Internal Reservatior
Reserved for PFAS Settlement.
Reserved for capital ..
Reserved for maintenance and operations
Reserved for mitigation.
Unassigned/unreserved..

TOTALNET POSITION.......coccoot i e

June 30, 2025

Article 97 W.R. Grace PFAS Capital Long-Term Capital
Gengeral Stablization Stablization Settlements Projects Obligations Assels Total

3,229,907 § -8 97.406 § 611,629 1721978 § -8 - 8 5,660,920
- - 701,904 - - - * 701,904

272,798 - - - - 272,798
1,962,585 - - - - 1.962,585
322,82} - - - - 322821

- - - 1,750,755 - - - 1,750,755
5788111 - 799,310 2,362,384 1.721978 - - 10,671 783
5.171,138 - - - - - - 5,171.138
(1.,084,760) - . - = . 22.572,689 21.487.929
1,084 760 - - - - - 50,074,539 51,159.299
5,171,138 - - - - - 72,647,228 77.818.366
10,959,249 - 799,310 2362384 1,721,978 - 72,647,228 88,490,149
- - - - 339,084 - 339,084

- - - - - 492,477 - 492477

- - - - - 831,561 - 831,561

191,209 - - 3,646,281 3,837,490

- - - - 255,963 255,963

- - - 268,755 268,755

- - - - 31.000 31.000

- - 6,012,328 - - 6,012,328

- o) - - - 1,772,034 - 1,772,034

191,209 - - 9,658,609 2,327,752 - 12,177,570

- - - 1,744,661 - 1.744.661

- - - - 368,000 - 368,000

- - - 4.367,590 - 4.367.590

- - - - - 77,906 - 77,906

- - - - - 21,195,510 - 21,199,510

- - - - - 27,757.667 - 27,757,667

191,209 = - - 9.658,609 30,085,419 - 39,935237
5,493,959 - - - - - - 5,493.959
- - - - 76.456 - 76.456

‘s = - - - 294,095 - 294,095
5,493,959 - - - - 370,551 - 5864 510
- - (6,012,328) {24,984,960) 72,647,228 41,649,940

- 2362384 - 2362384
1,832 - (1.924,303) (1.922.471)

28,775 83,578 - - - 112353
263.835 - - - - - - 263,835
4,981,471 - 713,900 - - 4,639,449 - 1,055,922
5274,081 % - 8 799310 § 2362384 (2.936.631) § __(29,624409) § __72,647.228 $ __ 43,521,963
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Water Supply District of Acton

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Capital

Projects

Capital
Assets

Total

7,939,259
235,060
516,263

12,164
8,540

8,714,286

1,932,662

(137,48;) (B)

(9,02';) (B)

(53,30;) (B}

1,645,971
(64,758)

1,932,662
600,000
317,988
535,303

69,391

454,699
110,593
53,560
122,802
58,185
77,887
3,028
46,067
11,120
41,622

21,000
4,791
16,000

1,732,846

6062911

{1,732,846)

2,648.375

(12,006,081

3,340,888
190,000

12,069,032

222,232

(753,715)
(60,283)

{8.475.193)

12,069,032

(591,764)

{8,475,193)

10.336.186

2,056,611

2,362,009

2,418,827
1,499,770

2,418,827
1,505,184

3,918,597

3924011

1,544.279

(3,012,317

(4,924 314)

10,336,186

62,311,042

8,342,631

35179332

(7.936,631) $

72,647228

43.521.963

General
.3 7,939,259 §
. 235,060
516,263
New service meter install fees. 12,164
Other operating revemes... ... 8,540
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ..............c...... 8,711,286
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries & wages. 1,443,971
Other postemployment benefits expens -
Depreciation. .. .
Lights, power, & ﬁlel 600,000
Health & life insurance. 317,988
Maintenance & operations... 535,303
Meters.... 137,487
Reserve... 69,391
Mitigation. .. 9,024
Middlesex retirement. .. 354,740
110,593
53,560
122,302
58,185
77.887
8,028
46,067
11,120
41,622
53,305
21,000
D.EP. withdrawal & fees... 4,191
ACCOUNting..................... 16,000
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES................c.co. 4.092.864
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).......c.coo oo 4,618,422
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment inComE ... .......ocois cee e e e e e 132,386
Capital outlay. -
Inicrest & fees expense.... (670,319)
Interest related to leases. .. (60,283)
Issuance of bonds... -
Premium from issuance of bcnds and mles -
Debt service - principal... - (1.471,552)
Debt service - principal relamed m leases (255,128)
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.............coovneninn (2,324,856)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS. 2,293,526
PFAS Settlement revene... ..........ccccoevveniievieenens -
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION:
Grant revem - pnnclpal forgzveness -
Grant reveme .. 5414
TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS................... 5414
Transfers in (out), net... {1,516,998)
CHANGEINNETPOSITION... ..........ooivienns 781,942
NET POSITION AT BEGINING OF YEAR. .. 4,492,139
NET POSITION ATEND OF YEAR.......................... § 5,274,081
{A) P ad in the esti d net other

{B) Represents capital asset additions from general fund expenditures.

benefit liability, net of related deferred outflows/(inflows}) of resources,
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Water Supply District of Acton
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Variance
Original Final Budgetary  Carried Forward to Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
‘Water rates and services.. .8 7,447,999 $ 7,447,999 § 7,939,259 $ - 3 491,260
Mitigation fees... . - - 235,060 - 235,060 (A)
Solar field land use and cell tower use.. . 500,000 500,000 516,263 - 16,263
New service meter install fees... - 12,164 - 12,164 (A)
Other cost recovery programs. - - 8,540 - 8,540
Interest income... U - - 132,386 - 132,386
TOTALREVENUES... ... oo vi e et 7,947,999 7.947.999 8,843 672 - 895,673
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Salaries and wages... 1,633,565 1,633,565 1,443,971 - 189,594
Lights, power, and fuel... e 600,000 600,000 600,000 - -
Health and life insurance. 374,265 374,265 317,988 - 56,277
Maintenance and operations... . 608,000 608,000 535,303 - 72,697
Meters 125,000 125,000 137,487 - (12,487)
Reserve 100,000 93,600 69,391 - 24,209
Miti - N 9,024 - (9,024) (A)
Middlesex retirememt... ......... .o coiivienr i ein e 354,740 354,740 354,740 - -
Insurance... - 133,056 133,056 110,593 - 22,463
Chemicals.. 168,000 168,000 122,802 - 45,198
Laboratory analysis.. 85,000 85,000 717,887 - 7,113
Auto maintenance and fuel.. 53,560 53,560 53,560 - -
Information reports... 30,000 30,000 11,120 - 18,880
Telephone... 21,000 21,000 21,000 - -
Legal... 100,500 106,900 58,185 - 48,715
Soﬂwa.re subscnpuons/ lT nmmemnce 60,000 60,000 46,067 - 13,933
Office supplies.. 62,000 62,000 41,622 - 20,378
Education, 17,500 17,500 8,028 - 9,472
Engineering. .. 60,000 60,000 53,305 - 6,695
D.EP withdrawal and fees.. 5,000 5,000 4,791 - 209
Accounnng 22,500 22,500 16,000 - 6,500
Debt service:
Debt principal.., 1,471,552 1,471,552 1,471,552 - -
Debt interest... 693,159 693,159 670,319 - 22,840
Debt principal - related to leases.. - - 255,128 - (255,128)
Debt interest - related to leases.... - - 60,283 - (60,283)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES..................... 6.778,397 6,778.397 6,550,146 - 228,251
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES... ................... 1,169,602 1,169,602 2,293,526 - 1,123,924
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
State grant revenue - - 5,414 - 5,414
Transfers in.. - - 27,281 - 27,281
Transfers out. - - (1,544.279) - (1,544,279)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)... ... oo v e e - - (1,511,584) - (1,511,584}
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE.........cccccc i et 1,169,602 1,169,602 781,942 - (387,660)
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year........ 4,492,139 4,492,139 4,492,139 - -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year............... § 5,661,741 § 5661741 $ 5274081 % - 8 {387.660)
COMPONENTS OF BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for maintenance and operations. . 28,775
Reserved for mitigation....................... 263,835
Unassigned/umreserved. .. ... ... oo ioe e rn vt e e e e 4,981,471
Total Budgetary Fund Balance, End of Year... ... ... oo oo e 8 5274081

(A) The District does not budget for mitgiation revenue or expenditures or new service meter install revenue or expenditures as part of their operating budge
activity is reported within the General Fund.



Water Supply District of Acton

Schedule of Reserve for Capital Projects

Year Ended June 30, 2025
Beginning Transfers Debt Payments Ending
Balance (To) From Borrowed Made Balance
6/30/2024  General Fund (Paid) Capitalize 6/30/2025
From Capital Projects Fund:
Clean Rehab Wells... $ 43,560 $ - 8 - 8 32916 $ 10,644
Easements Conant I1.... 11,589 - - - 11,589
Flagg Hill Tank Repairs... 2,889 - - 2,889
Marshall Well Repl nt... 54 - - - 54
Media Replacement... 305,385 - - 72,372 233,013
New Vehicle... 80,530 - - 80,000 530
Replace Old Mairs... 49,644 - - 21,513 28,131
Residuals Manag Tank... 15,513 - - - 15,513
Storage Tank Repairs... 27478 - - - 27478
Water Main Emergency. .. 27,889 - - 27,889 .
Water Main Improvi 1,589,394 - - 371,542 1,217,852
Master Plan Update... 56,600 - - 42,029 14,571
North Acton Water Treatment Plant - Funded from the MCWT.......... (48,521) - 157,914 109,393 -
South and Central Acton Water Treatment Plant - PEAS Engineering, 6,609 . . 5,534 1,075
Central Acton Water Treatment Plant - Funded from the MCWT... (55,775) - 4,905.864 (A) 6,625,171 (1,775,082)
South Acton Water Treatment Plant - Funded from the MCWT. (191,837) - 2,593.340 (A) 4,174,302 (1,772,799)
Kelley's Comner Water Mains. 294,742 - - 294,742 -
549 Main Street 23,868 - - 6,504 17,364
BALDCO Land Purchase. - - - 137,644 (137,644)
Vacuum Tank Trailer Truck 27,600 - - 4,530 23,070
Service Vehicle 2024 2,449 - - - 2,449
Office Roof 2024 30,000 - - - 30,000
Water Supply Alternative Study. 75,000 - - - 75,000
Kemedy Pitless Adapter: 50.000 - = - 50,000
Total Reserved for Capital - Capital Projects Fund. ..., $_ 2424660 $ - §__ 7657118 § 12.006.081 § __ (1.924.303)
Transfers
Begimming (To) From Debt Payments Ending
Balance W.R. Grace Borrowed Made Balance
6/30/2024 Fund (Paid Capitalize 6/30/2025
From W.R. Grace Fund:
Assabet III-(Grace)... $ 60 $ -8 - 3 - 8 60
PILOT South Acton Water Tr Plant...... 21,122 - - (B) 19.350 1.772
Total Reserved for Capital - W.R. Grace Fund............ccoccovminninnn, $ 21.182 § -8 - 8 19350 _§ 1.832

(A) In 2025, the District was awarded principal loan forgiveness in the amount of $2,418,827.
(B) Exclusive of capital asset additions from the balance reserved for operations and maintenance totaling $43,601
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Water Supply District of Acton

General Operations — Schedule of Changes in Net Position —
Current Year and Two Years Prior

Year Ended June 30, 2024
2025 2024 2023
General Fund General Fund Gereral Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
‘Water user charges & other services................. 7,939,259 3 6,372,723 § 6,235,183
Mitigation fees.. 235,060 17,402 66,776
Solar field land use and cell tower use. 516,263 545,337 502,073
New service meter install fees........................ 12,164 15,392 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ............ 8.711.286 6,950,854 6,804,032
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries & wages... 1,443,971 1,430,640 1,552,117
Lights, power, & fuel... 600,000 581,747 554,572
Health & life insurance................cccoeinnn e, 317,988 205,109 236,718
Maintenance & operations.........................o... 535,303 389.733 466,116
MELEIS. .. ..ot e cessnesrens 137,487 121,245 75,000
Reserve.... 69,391 83,106 -
Mitigation.. 9,024 59,822 59,780
Middlesex retirement. 354,740 330,838 288,240
Insurance.. . 110,593 98,781 97,645
Auto maintenance & fuel 53,560 35,039 38,197
Chemicals. . 122,802 128,371 101,504
Legal... 58,185 81,393 55,170
Laboratory analy51s 77,887 80,371 83,991
Education... 8,028 10,899 9,627
Information reports 11,120 38,163 34,130
Office supplies... 41,622 63,361 82,576
Engineering, maintenance, and other e 53,305 18,893 30,319
D.EP. w1thdrawa1&fees....4.........4....‘“.....“ 4,791 4,967 5.121
Leased equipment... ...........oooi i e, - 2,397,499 -
Accomting. ................. 16.000 15.800 16.000
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES............. 4.092,864 6.175.777 3,786,823
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)................. 4,618,422 775,077 3,017,209
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment iNCOME... ..o oot iiten e e e ee e aeeae 132,386 122,443 53,375
Interest & fees expense.. (670,319) (633,722) (519,114)
Interest related to leases... (60,283) (27,189) -
State gramt revenue.. 5,414 1,500,000 -
Lease financing... e - 2,397,499 -
Debt service - prmcnpal . (1,471,552) (1,659,135) (1,143,411)
Debt service - principal rea]ted to leases ............ (255,128) (128.955) -
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.............. (2,319,482 1,570,941 (1,609.150)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS.... 2,298,940 2,346,018 1,408,059
TRANSFERS:
Transfers in(out)... .........ocovii i, (1,516,998) (1,320.000) (685.104)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION................... 781,942 1,026,018 722,955
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........... 4,492,139 3,466,121 2,743,166
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR..................... 5274081 $ 4,492,139 $ 3,466,121
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Water Supply District of Acton
Notes to Additional Information

Year Ended June 30, 2024

NOTE A - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved at District Annual Meeting.
The District Manager presents an annual budget at District Annual Meeting, which includes
recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses.

Increases or transfers between and within line items in the District and other budget adjustments,
subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, are authorized by a Special District Meeting.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a
prior year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current year. These carry forwards
are included as part of the subsequent year’s original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending authorized for an appropriation
account. However, the payment of debt service is statutorily required, regardless of whether such
amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or otherwise, and final
judgments may exceed the level of spending authorized by Annual District Meeting.

The District adopts an annual budget for the General Sub-Fund in conformity with the guidelines
described above. The original 2025 approved budget for the General Sub-Fund authorized $6.8 million
in appropriations. The District Manager has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is
maintained. Budgetary control is exercised through the accounting system.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

To the Board of Commissioners
Water Supply District of Acton

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States (“Government Auditing Standards™), the financial statements of the
business-type activities, and fiduciary activities of Water Supply District of Acton (the “District”), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated , 2025,

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Merrimack, NH
, 2025
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Acton Water District - PWS 2002000
Summary of Treated Water Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances {PFAS) 2025

Sample Location

Sample Date Clapp/Whitcomb WTP Central Acton WTP North Acton WTP South Acton WTP
January 23, 2025 Not Sampled 11.8 Not Sampled 15
January 27, 2025 Not Sampled Not Sampled ND Not Sampled
February 26, 2025 Not Sampled Not Sampled ND 14.3

March 10, 2025 Not Sampled 10 ND 15.5

April 28, 2025 Not Sampled 11.7 ND 174

May 7, 2025 Not Sampled 13.3 ND 12.2

June 16, 2025 Not Sampled 10.3 ND 17.8

July 21, 2025 Not Sampled 14.5 ND 18.6

August 13, 2025 Not Sampled 12.1 ND 16.3
September 3, 2025 Not Sampled Not Sampled ND 16.8
September 10, 2025 Not Sampled 18 Not Sampled Not Sampled
October 1, 2025 Not Sampled 19 Not Sampled Not Sampled
October 8, 2025 Not Sampled Not Sampled ND 14.8
November 4, 2025 Not Sampled Not Sampled Not Sampled 15
November 5, 2025 Not Sampled 14.7 ND Not Sampled
December 2, 2025 Not Sampled Not Sampled ND Not Sampled
December 9, 2025 Not Sampled 15.1 Not Sampled 12.5
Notes:

WTP = Water Treatment Plant

Units are in parts per trillion (ppt) or ng/L
ND = below method detection limit

Not Sampled = PFAS samples are not collected at each WTP on the same date or when a WTP is not producing water for consumption
Results provided are the sum of 6 PFAS Compounds - PFOA, PFOS, PFNA, PFHXS, PFHpA, and PFD

All treated water data is shared with consumers to be transparent. Not all of the data presented here will meet MassDEP data acceptance standards.






DRAFT FY 27 BUDGET
Prepared for the 12.08.2025 Board of Commissioners Meeting

- FY 27 Budget Draft__ - — 1 ]
2nd Qu Actual
Fros " %
BudgetFY26  (asofNovernber30,2025| axpanded  FY20Frajections | FY27spmssd | Incresse/Decrease — NOTES S —
expenses I I _‘ I
[ Audit/Accountng | 28,000 % 28,000 25% Futl OPEB valuation needied, 5inyie Audkt re-ired. pius 524,000 for reg audit
fAusto Maint & Fuel | 75,000 2% 75,000 | o
|stort Tem Debt - 1 - : o% | % None projcted
Lonj Term Debl 1 2,255,740 42906 20% 24% | Reflects the addition of the SAWTP and CAWTP PFA Refer to Deb tab for defalts.
(Chemicals I 184,800 5089550 92% ﬁl__
DEP Withdrawal == 5,000 o% o% | —
|empioyee Education — 17,500 12.00417 &% o
ey [ 60,000 - 21% o =
{HeaithvLte insurance Active — 295601 10867468 3% 12% | Personnel changes drive the change- budgeted figure fs based on 20 remlom increase
HealthvLite Insurance Relirce 181,121 3% w21 3% Pessonnel charges rive the change- budgeted
Information Regorts: 40000 an 40,000 | 0% =l
Insurance 141,850 1% 20% sease due to market volathiry
Laborateey Anatyits = £5,000 54% 5% =
Lejal i 58,165 110,000 18% 0w - )
Ughts/Power/Fusl —— 1] 600,000 600,000 4% 10% | 101 Increase due 1o anticipated continued enery market volatiy
Maintenance 40 i 535203 750,000 39% o )
|Medta Replaceme | 100,000 o% ~100% |Use MDL funds $328,000 = - = =
NAWTP PFAS Filter Lease 1 315311 322,000 2% -100% |Use MOL funds $671,847
| Middtesex Retiement | 354,740 397,791 100% 10% |
5 121245 | 125000 | 124715 400,000 4%
63362 | 62,000 | 522 50000 om
: so0a0 | 45,067 125,000 3%
| =l 21,000 | 21,000 21,000 840853 40% -
E=— 83506 100,000 | 69,391 100,000 - o ——
Satarics & Wages. = I 1430840 | 1,633,565 1,443,968 1675000 65779105 3% %
Vehicle 50,000 = o
Tol| 6,757 388 7,298420 6,805,084 2,030,203 2.760,443.49 W .
REVENUE  E— M| 1l | -
ue =—— | 2887849 4.471297 4602230 252942651 55% 4577.973 | % —
|Servlce Fee 1 537645 | 537.010 534,000 260,02500  50% 534,000 | %)
Debi Fee _ 2,486,668 2,366,354 2.260.600 104014250 50% | =
— Total Water Revenwe 5912162 | 6935999 | 7.375.471 7,396,830 3505,894.41 5% 10%] - -
|Fire Pratection fgsinbters | 42,326 41,000 | 42,939 41,000 055265 99% 41000 | o%|
RenvLesse T 545357 | 115,000 5626348 49% 115,800 | o) = —
SolarFleldleaserevenue | -] 372,500 385,000 - o% %]
, 1 3218 23,344 so000 1217285 24% o
Cross Connection | 25145 | 23,797 21,000 1652301 9% o% -
Demand Fees j 35,800 245,600 250,000 3810000 15% -40% =
| Mitigation Fees | 17402 235,060 - 7.905.00 o% | 0% -
New Services Meter Installation RF 15,302 100,000 12,164 - 030932 0% - o
Total Other Revenue | 713520 1,012,000 1,089,167 862,000 19100829 21% a2
Total | 8825682 754788 8,474,637 8,259,630 _ 411900070 0% %
Rty by 1,962,585 Acwml | T —
Ockober biling 2184002 Actual | - | -
Jancary biting 1,720,000 Projecied 1 _ 1 = —
Aprl biing 1520243 Projacied -
Five Protection 41,000 — 2
Reparsiiss 25,000 o
Cross Conn 21,000 - =
Rent 115,000
Solar L essa revenua 385,000 [ — -
Now Sorvics Meter Revenue [} —
Migation [ | o
Damand 250,000 =
Projected Income 6,233,830 )
Unis 8,900 == C -
Services 0804 B
43012025 Froe Cash ] - T
Appropriaiona - i e —
Froe Cash Betance .
8730/2025 Grace Uneppropristed = # o -
Fior MBO I —
Grace Balance [ 1 I | - - N
| | —
| ! = ——

Debttee = $63.50Mnt per
Service fee =15/ untt per 5is

“jreted tobe $85.25
Ibased on B 50Q units
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